
MINUTES 

WOOLWICH TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE 

SPECIAL JOINT MEETING AND PUBLIC HEARING REGARDING TDR FIVE YEAR REVIEW 

OCTOBER 30, 2013 

 

The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by Woolwich Township Joint Land Use Board Chairman 

Alan Schwager who made the following statement: 

 

Adequate notice of this meeting has been provided in accordance with the Open Public Meetings Act. 

 

Those present saluted the American Flag. 

 

Roll call of JLUB members was conducted.  

 

Roll Call of Township Committee was conducted. 

 

Armano: Present Descano: PRESENT Fein: PRESENT  Elefante: PRESENT 

Maccarone: ABSENT 

 

Committeeman Descano welcomed those present and noted that the meeting was conducted based 

upon statutory requirements of the State TDR Act. He acknowledged that a TDR Task Force has met 

throughout the year to review the plan, and that certain revisions were suggested which are looked 

upon as an improved plan and one that will be more realistic to attain. 

 

Township Planner Timothy Kernan presented an overview of the TDR Review components. He noted 

that the TDR Act requires proof that 25% of development potential has been transferred, and if the plan 

does not meet that test, the Ordinance is presumed to be null and void. Mr. Kernan announced that the 

Township has met those criteria, having retired 29% of TDR Credits through conventional preservation 

methods and the Auburn Road Village General Development Plan. 

 

Woolwich Township Director of Community Development Matt Blake provided an update to the 

water/sewer planning efforts, acknowledging that the developer has obtained sewer credits from Logan 

MUA  for Woolwich Commons. Mr. Blake also acknowledged that the Township is considering a ground 

water discharge package plant option. He provided a timeline of anticipated upcoming tasks.  

 

Jim Hartling of Urban Partners provided a presentation on economic trends and assumptions since the 

institution of TDR. He noted that based on current trends, the township could be built out by 2040. He 

noted that approximately 1,000 TDR credits remain after conventional preservation. He acknowledged 

the need to provide a balance between the number of TDR credits and their marketplace within the 

receiving area. It is predicted that when the market is on track and sewer is available, the regional 

center will take off.  

 

Mr. Kernan provided a brief history of the Woolwich Adult Settlement Agreement, which is no longer 

operable. He added that the Wolfson project, in providing over 1.5 million sf of commercial retail, the 

thought of the task force was to move the residential development nearer to the retail center to create 

a walkable smart growth area. He projected that of the 1600 acre regional center would support roughly 

2,300 residential units.  

 



Mr. Hartling addressed school impacts. He noted that in using the Rutgers model, there would be a 

projected 650 school aged children. He noted that more realistically, there could be approximately 540 

children added to the S/W District and 300 to the KRHS District. He further noted the offset of ratable 

and housing types that would result in fewer children. 

 

Motion was made by JLUB member Chief Russell Marino and seconded by JLUB member John Juliano to 

open the meeting to the public. All were in favor. 

 

Anthony Garozzo of 353 Garwin Road asked who the TDR Ordinance was adopted by. Chairman 

Schwager replied that the Master Plan was adopted by the JLUB and recommendation made to the 

Township Committee who adopted the enacting TDR Ordinance.  

 

Mr. Blake added that conventional preservation was still successful in that prior approved subdivisions 

did not get built. Mr. Garozzo asked where those funds came from and Mr. Blake advised from the Open 

Space fund and in partnerships with county and state.  

 

Mr. James Leone of Haddon Heights but owning property in Woolwich Township noted the history of 

land transfers since 1960, and thinks that the process will take a lot longer. He added that framers look 

at their land as their retirement funds. He feels that TDR may have frozen the ability of farmers to sell 

their land. 

 

Chairman Schwager answered that TDR was adopted five years ago, and the review process is statutory. 

He added that another review will be conducted in five years. He also noted that the Township cannot 

stop residential growth, but can attempt to control it. 

 

Joseph Musumeci of 339 Paulsboro Road stated that his parcel is the largest in the receiving area and is 

proposed to become a sending area. He noted that five years ago, no-one asked him what he wanted 

done with his land. He asked how long it will take to conduct the Master Plan process so that his land 

will be in a sending area.  

 

Chairman Schwager replied that the Master Plan process will be conducted in 2014. Mr. Musumeci 

replied that until that time, his hands are still tied. 

 

Mr. Musumeci then inquired as to whom the 322 corridor “stakeholders” are as referred to on page 8 of 

the draft report. 

 

Mr. Blake replied that the task force met with numerous state and regional planning agencies. 

 

Mr. Musumeci asked if any land owners had been brought into the discussions. He noted that over the 

past few months he had asked if any changes were proposed for his property and was told by Mr. Blake 

that changes could occur.   

 

Anthony Maccarone of 334 Oak Grove Road stated that he feels that his property was not assigned 

enough credits and that wealth was transferred to other people.  

 

Mr. Maccarone was invited to begin the TDR appeal process. 

 



Tom Sorbello of 216 Porches Mill Road in South Harrison questioned the value of TDR credits, and noted 

that value needs to be created in order to justify land values. 

 

Mark Santarian 2387 Kings Hwy. Stated that he was hoping to get a TDR value. 

 

Mr. Hartling replied that he has looked at it, and advised that certain factors need to be considered such 

as recent land sales and preservation transactions. He further stated that in 2008, value was given at 

$55,000/credit. In the economic downturn of 2008-2011, the value may have decreased to 30-

35,000/credit. Trend now could be increasing, specifically upon the appearance of sewer. 

 

Mr. Santarian asked what the next trigger will be. Mr. Hartling replied that over the next five years, 

value may go to $45-50,000/credit.  

 

Mr. Santarian asked what happens to zoning if TDR goes away.  Mr. Kernan replied that based upon 

update of wastewater management plan requirements on the part of the state which set minimum lot 

sizes based upon nitrate dilution models which would establish six acres lot size. He noted that 

landowners should hope that TDR succeeds because credit allocation was based upon prior zoning as 

opposed to what would  occur with zoning due to the new state reg’s.  

 

Mr. Santarian questioned creation of a TDR Bank asking if it would be through the Township, County or 

State.  

 

Mr. Blake responded that the TDR Bank will be worked out during the next five years. The TDR Bank 

could be a pool of money which will help to stimulate the market. He added that the State has said that 

the Township must first prove sewer planning is viable. 

 

Mr. Santarian requested more communication on the part of the Township to landowners as the process 

continues. 

 

Joseph Garozzo of 356 Garwin Road asked where the county is in the process of getting sewer. He noted 

that there have been survey crews on Garwin Road who told him that they were doing work on the part 

of county towards running sewer lines. The Township responded that it knows of no such plans by the 

County.   

 

Mr. Garozzo then questioned the development of the Kingsway Professional Office Center on Rt. 322 

and whether or not it met TDR criteria. Mr. Garozzo was informed that approval was given prior to TDR. 

Mr. Hartling added that it is located in an FOC Zone which does not require credits. 

 

Chairman Schwager called a ten minute recess. 

 

The meeting reconvened at 8:45 p.m. at which time the public hearing continued. 

 

Curtis Suit of 480 Monroeville Road noted that he owns 25 acres for which 4.75 TDR credits are 

allocated. He stated that there should be a written descriptive plan as to how credits are allocated and 

also what happens if TDR is abandoned. He further stated that there needs to be a practical realistic 

determination of TDR credit value. He added that he feels there needs to be better communication from 

the Township regarding the TDR Program and periodic updates provided.  

 



Michael Maccarone of 753 Willow Drive in Greenwich Township asked how the number of assigned 

credits were allocated per parcel. Mr. Kernan stated that credits were allocated based upon zoning, soil 

caricature and environmental constraints.  

 

Mr. Maccarone stated that he feels his family farm on Stone Meeting House Road did not receive proper 

credit allocation. Mr. Blake replied that he would look into the matter. 

 

Mr. Tom Sorbello again approached the dais and questioned no credits having been used for the 

Kingsway Professional Building. He stated that he feels credits should be utilized on parcels to make it 

work in order to close the gap. 

 

Mr. Joe Musumeci again approached the dais and stated that the township cannot take away the rights 

of landowners. 

 

Carolyn King of 107 Davidson Road thanked those for their hard work on the plan. She asked that the 

officials look at the ecomonic feasibility between the sending and receiving areas. She further requested 

that the Township work cooperatively with NJDOT on traffic issues on the corridor, specifically at the 

intersection of Rt. 322 and Kings Hwy. 

 

Leslie Movessian of 2387 Kings Hwy. addressed the balanced needed between receiving and sending 

credits. 

 

The JLUB by motion, second and duly passed closed the public hearing. 

 

There were no comments from the JLUB members. 

 

Chairman Schwager provided a re-cap of the review report and stated that it worth another five years to 

give the program a chance to work. He asked the Board to either accept or reject the report. 

 

Motion was made by John Juliano to accept the report and forward it as mandated to the Department of 

Planning Advocacy. Bob Rushton seconded. The Chair called for a roll call: 

Marino and Casella-opposed.  All others-approved.  Motion carried 5-2. 

 

The meeting was turned over to Deputy Mayor Alex Elefante.  

 

The Deputy Mayor thanked all present for their valuable input and stated that it is clear that a better job 

should be done with the landowners as to education and communication. 

 

Deputy Mayor Elefante continued in noting that the review was a cooperative effort between township, 

local and state officials, and that he supports the findings.   

 

He asked if there were any questions or comments from the Committee. 

 

Committeeman Armano stated that he believes in the TDR Plan as a means towards smart growth, and 

is proud of the prior Governing Body who put the plan in place. He stated that there was no way to 

foresee the economic downturn. He noted that all decisions are tough, and thanked those who spoke 

that evening which allows the officials to consider the information presented. 

 



Committeeman Descano noted the dedication and purpose put forth through the review process. He 

said that he is embarrassed to hear the landowners think that the township has done a disservice, when 

the intent was to curtail  explosive development growth while trying to ensure that landowners would 

still profit. He reminded that the report is only a review and that no changes are being made at this 

time. 

 

Motion was then made by Committeeman Descano, seconded by Committeeman Armano and 

unanimously passed to re-open the meeting to the public. All were in favor. 

 

Chris Viereck of 110 Viereck Road went down the line on the dais asking who voted yes. He stated that 

the plan was adopted in fear with no benefit to landowners. He stated that the officials should “kill” the 

plan. 

 

Mark Santarian again approached the dais saying that he forgot to thank the officials for their efforts. He 

noted that a lot of the comment provided that evening deserves their consideration, and asked that 

both areas be weighed and consideration be given to future effects. 

 

William Horner of Franklinville Road asked if any other municipalities are at a similar stage in TDR 

Planning. Mr. Hartling replied that Chesterfield Township was the first to enact TDR and is continuing to 

move forward. Other municipalities have adopted plans, but Woolwich Township is by far the farthest 

along in the process. 

 

Joe Garozzo again approached the dais and stated that without more rooftops, commercial 

development won’t come in.  

 

Committeeman Descano noted that the types of retail being contemplated for the corridor would serve 

a regional draw.  

 

Hearing no more public comment, motion was made by Committeeman Descano and seconded by 

Committeeman Fein to close the public portion. All were in favor. 

 

Deputy Mayor Elefante asked if there was a motion to accept the TDR Review. 

 

Committeeman Armano wished to inquire as to the process for appeal if errors are found in the credit 

allocation process, and that if the Committee approves the plan, adjustments can still be made. Mr. 

Hartling assured him that those adjustments could still be made. 

 

Committeeman Fein stated that at this point the boards are assuring responsibility for having reviewed 

the plan and ensuring the state that a full review has occurred. He added that officials are not voting yes 

or no to the feelings expressed by the public, and that the officials don’t take what they do lightly. He 

thanked all for coming out. 

 

Motion was then made by Committeeman Fein to approve the plan review and recommend its 

submission to the Department of Planning Advocacy. Committeeman Descano seconded. All were in 

favor. None were opposed. 

 

Motion was made by Committeeman Fein and seconded by Committeeman Armano to adjourn the 

Township Committee portion of the meeting. All were in favor. 



JLUB Chairman Schwager asked for a motion to adjourn the JLUB meeting. So moved Marino. Second 

Casella. All were in favor. 

 

The meeting adjourned. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Jane DiBella 

Administrator/Clerk 

 

 

Minutes not verbatim 

Audio recording on file in the office of the JLUB  Secretary 

 

 

 

 

 

 


